From: [REDACTED]

Sent: 06 December 2021 16:16

To: Minister for Green Skills, Circular Economy and Biodiversity <MinisterGSCEB@gov.scot>
Subject: RE: Meeting - Ms Slater, MSPs and Circularity Scotland Ltd - Tuesday 7 December

Hi Marissa

Thank you for providing the Teams details.

Kind regards

Lorna

From: [REDACTED] On Behalf Of MinisterGSCEB@gov.scot
Sent: 06 December 2021 15:07

To: [REDACTED] MinisterGSCEB@gov.scot
Subject: Meeting - Ms Slater, MSPs and Circularity Scotland Ltd - Tuesday 7 December

CAUTION: This email originated from outside your organization. Exercise caution when
opening attachments or clicking links, especially from unknown senders.

Hi [REDACTED]

| understand [REDACTED] are available to participate in this meeting tomorrow at the rescheduled
time of 13:00-13:45, thank you to them both and apologies for any inconvenience with diaries — the
dial in details for the meeting via Teams is below:

Microsoft Teams meeting

Join on your computer or mobile app

Click here to join the meeting

Or call in (audio only)

[REDACTED] Find a local number | Reset PIN

SCOTS Connect

Learn More | Help | Meeting options

Kind regards

[REDACTED] - Private Secretary to Lorna Slater MSP, Minister for Green Skills, Circular Economy and
Biodiversity

Scottish Government | St Andrew’s House, Regent Road, Edinburgh EH1 3DG || Email:
MinisterGSCEB@gov.scot

All e-mails and attachments sent by a Ministerial Private Office to any other official on behalf of a Minister relating to a decision, request
or comment made by a Minister, or a note of a Ministerial meeting, must be filed appropriately by the recipient. Private Offices do not
keep official records of such e-mails or attachments.

Scottish Ministers, Special advisers and the Permanent Secretary are covered by the terms of the Lobbying (Scotland) Act 2016. See
www.lobbying.scot
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This e-mail (and any files or other attachments transmitted with it) is intended solely for the attention of the
addressee(s). Unauthorised use, disclosure, storage, copying or distribution of any part of this e-mail is not
permitted. If you are not the intended recipient please destroy the email, remove any copies from your system
and inform the sender immediately by return.

Communications with the Scottish Government may be monitored or recorded in order to secure the effective
operation of the system and for other lawful purposes. The views or opinions contained within this e-mail may

not necessarily reflect those of the Scottish Government.
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From: [REDACTED]

Sent: 08 December 2021 20:57

To: Minister for Green Skills, Circular Economy and Biodiversity <MinisterGSCEB@gov.scot>
Subject: RE: Letter from Lorna Slater MSP, Minister for Green Skills, Circular Economy and
Biodiversity to [REDACTED] , Chief Executive, Circularity Scotland Limited

[REDACTED]
Thank you for sending this and please pass my thanks to the Minister.

Kind regards.

[REDACTED] Website: Home - Circularity Scotland
Follow us: LinkedIn & Twitter

Circularity
Scotland

From: [REDACTED] > On Behalf Of MinisterGSCEB@gov.scot

Sent: 08 December 2021 20:47

To: [REDACTED] >

Cc: MinisterGSCEB@gov.scot

Subject: Letter from Lorna Slater MSP, Minister for Green Skills, Circular Economy and Biodiversity to
[REDACTED] , Circularity Scotland Limited

Importance: High

CAUTION: This email originated from outside your organization. Exercise caution when
opening attachments or clicking links, especially from unknown senders.

Dear [REDACTED]

Please find attached a letter from Lorna Slater MSP, Minister for Green Skills, Circular Economy and
Biodiversity, which | hope is helpful.

Kind regards
[REDACTED] - Private Secretary to Lorna Slater MSP, Minister for Green Skills, Circular Economy and
Biodiversity

Scottish Government | St Andrew’s House, Regent Road, Edinburgh EH1 3DG| Email:
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


https://circularityscotland.com/
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https://twitter.com/Circ_Scotland
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
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SCOTLAND’S DEPOSIT RETURN SCHEME
MEETING WITH CIRCULARITY SCOTLAND LTD

Via MS Teams
7 October 2021 — 0900-0945

Attendees

The Minister for Green Skills, Circular Economy, and Biodiversity
Harry Huyton (SG)

[Redacted]

Aidan Grisewood (SG)

[Redacted]

Note of meeting

1. Introductions

1.1  CSL representatives introduced themselves. Recruitment for senior staff and
Board members was ongoing and CSL emphasised their commitment to diversity on
their Board.

2. Delivery Timetable

2.1 [Redacted]emphasised CSL’s commitment to delivering a successful DRS
that would work well from day one. He commented that there was a good working
relationship with SG and that CSL were building relationships with SEPA and ZWS.

2.2  All attendees recognised the significant pressure to deliver DRS by 1 July
2022 in line with SG objectives, but also recognised the impact of COVID-19 and EU
Exit on the deliverability of what is an ambitious scheme.

2.3  The Minister asked CSL to investigate options for phased implementation (for
example return points going live before distance takeback) to reduce delivery risk.

Action: CSL to report back to SG with its views on phased implementation.

2.4  All attendees noted the importance of good programme-management moving
into the implementation phase, with regular meetings between SG, CSL, and other
key stakeholders to monitor delivery against milestones.

Action: CSL to provide SG with a detailed programme plan.

3. Key Risks and Issues

3.1 CSL made the following requests which were noted by the Minister:
e Early decision on, and announcement of, implementation date to support
fundraising and completion of contracts;
e Resolution of VAT issue which poses a significant risk to successful delivery
of CSL’s programme;



Existing scheme scope to be maintained with a recognition this is already
among the most ambitious schemes in Europe;

Early advice from SEPA as regulator to help resolve questions around
enforcement, and early SEPA engagement with CSL contractors to support
applications for the necessary permits;

Ministerial reassurance to potential partners on SG’s commitment to the
scheme;

[Redacted]

Action: CSL to write to the Minister setting out points where SG can help ensure
successful delivery.
Action: [Redacted]

4.

Critical Path

[Redacted]

7 October 2021 14:00-14:30

Meeting: Deposit Return Scheme
Participants: Mr Matheson, Ms Slater, Harry Huyton, John McFarlane, Kevin
Quinlan, Aidan Grisewood, [Redacted]

Notes:

[Redacted]
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SCOTLAND’S DEPOSIT RETURN SCHEME
MEETING WITH CIRCULARITY SCOTLAND LTD & ENVIRONMENTAL NGOS

Via MS Teams
16 November 2021 — 1100-1145

Attendees

The Minister for Green Skills, Circular Economy, and Biodiversity
Harry Huyton (SG)

Aidan Grisewood (SG)

[REDACTED]

Note of meeting

1. CSL introductions and discussion

1.1 CSL representatives provided some background on their work to deliver DRS.
CSL would be a significant organisation and estimated that it would have to manage
3bn containers each year, 37,000 return points, and 4,500 producers while delivering
a scheme with ambitious scope. CSL commented that they were running a
multimillion-pound programme of which delivery of the IT system was the critical
path. In addition to the impact of COVID-19 and EU Exit there were risks posed by
the current global supply-chain issues.

1.2 CSL commented that significant programme risks were to be expected given
the scale of the programme. |n addition to issues referred to above, the UK
Government had taken the position that VAT would be charged on deposits which
would add significant complexity, e.g. for CSL’s IT development.

1.3 CSL noted that their ambition was to deliver a scheme that would bring
significant environmental benefits. CSL aimed to minimise new vehicle miles, for
example by leveraging backhaul opportunities. They would allow glass to break
naturally, reducing the number of vehicles required to transport it while retaining it in
a suitable form for high-quality recycling. Environmental considerations would be
taken into account when making procurement decisions.

1.4  CSL noted that they had issued their tender for an IT service provider and that
procurement decisions were a matter for them and not for the Scottish Government.
Their procurement documents were not in the public domain. They were asking
providers to commit to delivery as early as feasible but CSL had made clear to
applicants and to government its view that 1 July 2022 was no longer achievable.

1.5 Representatives of the environmental NGOs (eNGOs) challenged CSL’s view
on this point and suggested that producers should have to fund costs associated
with the management of their drinks packaging between 1 July 2022 and the
eventual implementation date for the scheme. CSL noted the impact of COVID-19
on implementation and the complexity and ambition of the scheme by international
standards.

[REDACTED]



SCOTLAND’S DEPOSIT RETURN SCHEME
MEETING WITH CIRCULARITY SCOTLAND LTD

Via MS Teams
16 November 2021 — 1730-1800

Attendees

The Minister for Green Skills, Circular Economy, and Biodiversity
Harry Huyton (SG)

Aidan Grisewood (SG)

[Redaction]

Note of meeting

1. The Minister advised CSL as a courtesy not to expect an announcement of a
revised full implementation date in the statement on the circular economy that she
would make to Parliament the following day. She commented that she understood
the importance of early clarity on this issue for industry, but that further work within
SG was required before a decision could be made on the date. She hoped to make
a decision and announce it to Parliament within the next few weeks.

2. The Minister noted that she had just received a letter from the UK
Government confirming their intention to apply VAT to the deposits and that this was
very disappointing news which would have a bearing on the implementation of the
scheme.

3. The Minister commented that she had good confidence in CSL’s work to
deliver DRS.

4. CSL acknowledged the disappointing news regarding VAT and asked the
Minister to continue to press the UK Government to ensure the deposits were not
subject to VAT. [Redacted]

5. SG noted that there might be a need to further explore options for phased
implementation [Redacted]
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SCOTLAND’S DEPOSIT RETURN SCHEME
MEETING WITH CIRCULARITY SCOTLAND LTD & MSPS

Via MS Teams
7 December 2021 — 1300-1345

Attendees

The Minister for Green Skills, Circular Economy, and Biodiversity
Harry Huyton (SG)
Aidan Grisewood (SG)
[REDACTED]

Dean Lockhart MSP
Fergus Ewing MSP
Murdo Fraser MSP
Maurice Golden MSP
Liam Kerr MSP

lain Sinclair MSP
Mercedes Villalba MSP
Brian Whittle MSP
Mark Ruskell MSP
Finlay Carson MSP
[REDACTED]

Note of meeting

1. The Minister welcomed attendees to the meeting and introduced CSL, who as
scheme administrator were leading the work to deliver Scotland’s DRS. CSL
representatives introduced themselves and expressed their strong belief in the
principles of DRS and desire to deliver a successful scheme for Scotland. They
noted that Scotland’s DRS was ambitious by international standards and that DRS
would bring long-term benefit to Scotland but depended on strong public buy-in.

2. CSL provided background on their formation and future. Founded as a
company limited by guarantee with 29 founder members in February 2021,
[REDACTED]

3. Fergus Ewing MSP asked about where CSL’s assumptions differed from SG’s
published Business and Regulatory Impact Assessment (BRIA): would these
increase the cost of the scheme, and how would they ensure cost-neutrality for
retailers? CSL confirmed that they estimate there will be 2.7-3bn containers per year
flowing through the scheme (2.2bn in the BRIA) and 37,000 return points (17,000 in
the BRIA). [REDACTED]

4. Maurice Golden MSP asked how these different assumptions had been
arrived at and CSL replied that they had been (and continued to be) continuously
revisiting assumptions and searching out new sources of data with the help of an
independent contractor.

5. Brian Whittle MSP and Mark Ruskell MSP commented that because CSL is
an independent private-sector organisation it is therefore not subject to Fol. He
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asked how MSPs could hold CSL to account and monitor its progress. CSL
commented that they would be active participants in SG’s revised programme
governance model.

6. CSL summarised their current priorities: procuring contractors for IT and
logistics, recruiting staff and non-executive directors, and setting up corporate
functions. CSL were currently assessing applications for IT contractors with a
preference for using an existing scheme administrator IT system. Procurement was
under way for a logistics provider. CSL emphasised the importance of work under
way in other sectors, especially work to install reverse vending machines (RVMs) in
retailers across Scotland.

7. Maurice Golden MSP asked CSL to comment on the so-called ‘digital DRS’, a
proposed approach to delivering deposit return whereby consumers redeem deposits
on scheme articles by scanning them with a smartphone before placing them in their
kerbside recycling. CSL commented that they were monitoring developments in this
space but considered that ‘digital DRS’ technology was at a very early stage of
development. However, they would recommend that retailers install RVMs with
camera technology that would work with a ‘digital DRS’ system to provide a degree
of futureproofing.

8. CSL explained two significant ongoing risks to delivery: 1) the UK
Government’s decision to apply VAT to deposits, which would increase the
complexity of delivery, and 2) ongoing global supply-chain disruption. Mercedes
Villalba MSP commented that some existing schemes have VAT applied to the
deposits and CSL noted that the issue is not simply that VAT will be charged but that
HM Treasury’s proposed solution is not workable for industry. CSL confirmed that
they are building relationships with existing schemes to seek advice on delivery of
Scotland’s DRS.

9. CSL commented that that their ambition was to deliver a scheme that would
bring significant environmental benefits. CSL aimed to minimise new vehicle miles,
for example by leveraging backhaul opportunities. They hoped to open their

headquarters in Glasgow soon and intended that this should be a net-zero building.

10. Maurice Golden MSP commented that this was helpful to hear and asked how
CSL would ensure health and safety guidelines were followed for manual handling of
glass containers. CSL replied that they would likely use tote boxes for safe
transportation of glass and would work with return-point operators to minimise the
risk associated with handling.

11. Fergus Ewing MSP asked if the suggested additional return points meant
double the emissions from CSL'’s logistics operations. He also asked for
reassurance that the glass collected through DRS would be suitable for high-quality
recycling. CSL noted that most of the additional return points would be on existing
routes. They confirmed that they intend all the material collected through DRS to go
to high-quality, closed-loop recycling, and to that end none of the glass they collect
will be mechanically crushed.
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12. Mercedes Villalba MSP asked whether, if DRS was not implemented by 1 July
2022, drinks producers would cover the costs associated with managing drinks
containers at end-of-life until the scheme was fully implemented. CSL noted that
their role is to deliver the scheme and the Minister commented that she would
address this question when she made her statement to Parliament on 14 December.



SCOTLAND’S DEPOSIT RETURN SCHEME
MEETING WITH CIRCULARITY SCOTLAND LTD

Via MS Teams
4 November 2021 — 1545-1640

Attendees

The Minister for Green Skills, Circular Economy, and Biodiversity
Harry Huyton (SG)

Aidan Grisewood (SG)

[Redacted]

Note of meeting

1. Introductions

1.1  The Minister welcomed CSL representatives to the meeting. She would be
making a statement to Parliament on the circular economy on 17 November and was
keen to be able to announce an implementation date for DRS by then.

2. CSL’s delivery activities

2.1 CSL commented that there was a very good working relationship with SEPA.
SEPA were providing advice on the Regulations to help CSL make progress on
issues such as cross-border flows.

[Redacted]

2.2 The Minister emphasised the need for international expertise to support
successful delivery. CSL commented that they were taking this into account in:
inviting international firms to tender for contracts; ensuring that the return-point
handling fee would reflect international experience; and targeting the advertisement
for their permanent CEO at existing scheme CEOs.

2.3  CSL were working on how to deal with ‘legacy’ containers, i.e. non-deposit-
bearing containers placed on the market before the full implementation date.

[Redacted]

3. Implementation date

[Redacted]

[Redacted]

At this point the Minister left the meeting.

3.1 CSL explained that the UK Government’s decision on VAT was a dependency

for making further progress on IT development because neither HM Treasury nor
HMRC had provided sufficient detail on how deposits would be treated and different



possible approaches would require different information to be collected by CSL'’s
(and retailers’) IT systems.

[Redacted]
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